
CITY OF EXCELSIOR 
Hennepin County, Minnesota 

 

MINUTES 
 

City Council Work Session 
 

Monday, July 29, 2013 

 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 

Mayor Gaylord called the meeting to order at 6:39 p.m.   

 
Councilmembers present: Beattie, Caron, Fulkerson, Miller, and Mayor 

Gaylord 
 
Also Present:   City Manager Luger, Finance Officer Tumberg, 

Public Works Superintendent Wisdorf, and City 
Clerk Johnson 

 
2. Agenda Approval 
 

Fulkerson asked to add Council Protocol and Decision Making to the agenda.  
Beattie moved, Miller seconded, to approve the agenda as amended.  Motion 

carried 5/0. 
 
3. Council Protocol and Decision Making 

 
 Fulkerson stated that at the last Council meeting she felt like the Council was 

rushing through items on the agenda without everyone having an 
opportunity to fully discuss and voice concerns.   

 

 Caron said that she agreed with Fulkerson.  With the last Council it seemed 
like some discussions took too long, and that it would be good to find a pace 

somewhere in the middle.   
 

 Miller said that he doesn’t feel like the discussion has been rushed; he feels 
like he’s been able to make his points.     

 

 Mayor Gaylord said that he will try to ask if there is any more discussion on 
an item before asking for a motion. 

 

4. 2014 Preliminary General Fund Budget 
 

 Tumberg said that the Council has gone though most items to be able to 
establish a preliminary levy.  One item the Council still needs to discuss is 

whether to begin phasing in funding for the 2016 street improvement 
project.  To accomplish the project in 2016, the City will need an additional 
$165,000 by 2017 to fund the annual debt payments.  To accomplish that by 

2017, the Council would need to increase the levy $40,000 in each of the 
next four years.  An additional $40,000 to the levy in 2014 would result in a 

levy increase of 4.54% or $59,745.    
 



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 
July 15, 2013 

Page 2 
 

4. 2014 Preliminary General Fund Budget – (Continued) 
 
 Miller asked if the street improvement project is a new item.  Tumberg said 

that this has been in the Council memo for the last several work sessions but 
time has run out so the Council has not gotten to this item.  By phasing in 

the fundings, the City could grow into that amount and the bond payments 
would be self-funded. 

 

 Miller asked what amount was used in the budget for the possible 
roundabout.  Tumberg said that $1.65 million was used for the street 

imrpvoement project and about $550,000 of that was for the roundabout.    
 

 Beattie said that he thought the latest estimate for the City’s portion of the 
roundabout was about $200,000.  Miller said the City doesn’t really know 
what the amount would be, but if the cost is over $200,000 he does not think 

it is affordable.  He strongly supports the street projects, so he would 
support increasing the levy, but not at 4.54%.   

 
 Caron asked if Phase III is the final phase.  Wisdorf said that Phase III is the 

last phase in the original study.  Another study will need to be completed for 

other areas of the City. 
 

 Miller asked staff what assumptions were used for the street improvement 
project with regard to the bond amount and bond interest rate.  Tumberg 
said the estimate for the interest rate for the bond was 4% and the total 

bond was about the same amount as the 2010 bond which was $2.3 million. 
 

 Caron asked if the City is well below the capacity it can bond for.  Tumberg 
said yes.    

 

 Beattie asked what would the timeline be for selling bonds.  Tumberg said 
the City would probably bond sometime in 2016 and the first payment would 

be for interest only.  The first full bond payment probably would not occur 
until sometime in 2018. 

 

Caron asked if the street improvement project and bond are factored into the 
long range plan.  Tumberg said yes.   

 
Mayor Gaylord said he also would not be willing to spend more than 
$200,000-$250,000 for the roundabout. 

 
Caron said she is not supportive of a 4% increase to the tax levy. 

 
Fulkerson asked if there are funds factored in for moving the Council 
Chambers when the library moves out.  Tumberg said yes.  She noted that 

there is about $1 million in expenses in 2014 for capital projects, which 
includes relocating the Council Chambers.   

 
Caron asked if it would be possible for the City to levy for $20,000 and then 

put some of the fund balance into the capital account toward the street  



Minutes 
City Council Work Session 
July 15, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 

4. 2014 Preliminary General Fund Budget – (Continued) 
 

improvement project.  Tumberg said it is not a good practice to use fund 
balance for expenses.     

 
Caron said staff recommended moving some of the extra fund balance to the 
capital account.  If the City doesn’t bond in the next couple of years and 

continues to do the projects that are slated, the balance in the capital 
account will be low. 

 
Miller said the City needs to start preparing for some of these capital 

expenditures; he would support a 3% preliminary levy. 
 
Fulkerson said she thinks the City needs to keep the increase at 1.47% and 

decrease the fund balance, which is too high.   
 

Caron said if the City uses the capital improvement fund to pay for the 
capital projects, how does that fund get rebuilt.  Tumberg said that the rental 
revenues will be going into that account, but it would take awhile to replenish 

the fund.     
 

Beattie said if the Council agreed to a preliminary tax levy of a 3% increase it 
would give the City some time to shake through all of the issues.  He agrees 
with Miller and with the other suggestions that staff has recommended.   

 
Mayor Gaylord asked if staff would be comfortable with a 3% increase.  

Tumberg said yes. 
 
Caron said she would like staff to put together a spreadsheet that shows how 

long it would take to replenish the capital improvement fund if the money is 
used to do the capital improvement projects that are in the City’s Long Term 

Financial Plan over the next few years.   
   

5. Review of General Parking Restrictions Ordinance  

  
 The Council continued this item to the August 19, 2013 Work Session. 

 
6. Adjournment 
 

Beattie moved, Caron seconded, to adjourn at 7:04 p.m.  Motion carried 5/0. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 
Cheri Johnson 

City Clerk 
 

 


